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No. 14405

IN THE

3far itjr Nmtlj fi&trnrit

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA \

Appe^aw£

vs.

ROBERT H. H. SUGDEN AND
JEAN S. SUGDEN Appellees J

APPELLANT'S OPENING BRIEF

Appeal from the United States District Court for the

District of Arizona

JURISTICTIONAL MATTERS

The defendants, Robert V. H. Sugden and Jean S.

Sugden, husband and wife, were indicted on a charge

of violating 18 U.S.C. 371 (conspiracy) ; and the defen-

ant, Robert V. H. Sugden was also indicted on a charge

of violating 8 U.S.C. 1324(a)(3) (concealing aliens

illegaly within the United States). The United States

District Court for the District of Arizona had jurisdic-

ion by virtue of 18 U.S.C. 3231 and that Court had venue
under Rule 18, Federal Criminal Rules, due to the fact

that the acts stated in the indictments are alleged to

have occurred with the District of Arizona.

This Court has jurisdiction under the provisions of

28 U.S.C. 41, 1291, and 1294 and under 18 U.S.C. 3737

because this is an appeal from a final decision by the



District Court dismissing the indictments in these cases

and no direct review by the Supreme Court is author-

ized under 18 U.S. 3731.

These two cases have been ordered consolidated by
this Court for purposes of this appeal because the

issues are common to both cases (T.R. 84).

STATEMENT OF FACTS
The defendants entered pleas of not guilty to the

indictments ,and the cases (C-11,554 and C-11,555)

were consolidated for trial (T.R. 15). Prior to the trial

of the cases, defendants moved to suppress Government
evidence obtained through radio monitoring (T.R.10-

13). The District Court ordered a preliminary hearing

on the Defendants' Motion to Suppress Evidence.

At the preliminary hearing the evidence offered

showed that Robert J. Stratton, an Assistant Engineer

with the Federal Communications Commission, on

orders from the Washington Office made an investiga-

tion of a suspected illegal use of radio in the vicinity of

Yuma, Arizona (T.R. 34). On the 4th, 9th, 10th and

18th of September, 1953, Mr. Stratton monitored the

radio messages from the defendants' radio station (T

.R. 35-37), and the suspicion of an illegal use of the

radio was confirmed (T.R. 39). The defendants were

not advised that their radio messages were being moni-

tored, nor was any attempt made to secure their con-

sent for such monitoring (T.R. 36). Transcripts were

made of the monitored messages, and these transcripts

were sent to Washington (T.R. 38) . Copies of the trans-

cripts were made available to the United States Immi-

gration Sercice. Mr. Stratton acknowledged that he had

testified before the Grand Jury which indicted the de-

fendants concerning the substance of conversations

monitored by him (T.R. 41), and that he had conversa-

tions with the United States Attorney concerning the



testimony which he would give at the trial. Counsel for

the Government stated that they would rely on Strat-

to 's testimony in a trial of the indictments.

Horace Billingsley, Lawrence Thomas Gerhart, and

Robert F. Sommers, former employees of the defend-

ants testified that they had been questioned by the

United States Attorney or Immigration Agents, and

that transcriptions of radio broadcasts involving de-

fendants were used in the questioning. Both Gerhart

and Sommers testified before the Grand Jury concern-

ing the suspected activities of the defendants.

Robert and Jean Sugden both testified that they

placed their reliance on a representative of Motorola

Co. in matters concerning radio licensing and they were

not told that they could not use the radio. Robert Sug-

den identified Exhibit 3 as his station license, which

was issued to him to operate a radio station for farming

purposes. Both defendants stated that they had received

their operators' licenses on September 17, 1953, and

both identified their operators' licenses (T.R. 66 and

73, Exhibits land 2).

Theodore Kieling, a radio technician in Yuma, Ari-

zona then testified that he checked the defendants'

radio and warned them against using the radio without

an operator's license, and he even gave them forms to

fill out for their operators ' licenses.

The District Court held that the interception by the

Government of the radio messages of defendants was
unlawful, and the Court ruled that all testimony or

information gained from that source should be sup-

pressed (T.R. 79). The Court, on motion of defendants,

dismissed the indictments (T.R. 80). On May 5, 1954

the Court signed and filed a formal written order sup-

pressing evidence which the Government gained from
monitoring the broadcasts of the defendants, and dis-



missing' the indictments on the grounds that the indict-

ments were obtained by the Grand Jury's use and con-

sideration of illegally obtained information and evi-

dence, and the further grounds that the Government
must use illegally obtained evidence to establish its case

against the defendants (T.R. 22-25).

SPECIFICATION OF ERRORS
The appellant relies upon the following errors as a

basis for this appeal

:

1. The District Court erred in ruling as unlawful

the interception of the defendants' radio messages by
an engineer of the Federal Conununications Commis-
sion acting for the United States Government (T.R.

79).

2. The District Court erred in ruling that evidence

obtained through monitoring of the defendants' radio

messages by the United States should be suppressed

(T.R. 25 and 79).

3. The District Court erred in dismissing the indict-

ments against the defendants (T.R. and 80).

SUMMARY
The issues presented in this appeal are of vital im-

portance to the future successful operations of the Fed-

eral Communications Commission in its control of radio

broadcasting, and the decision of this Court on the

issues presented will materially affect future federal

law enforcement. The contentions which the Govern-

ment presses in this appeal are basically these: that

the Federal Communications Commission, through its

agents, has the power and authority by law to monitor

the radio broadcasts of private citizens ; that informa-

tion gained through the Federal Communications Com-
mission monitoring may be used either by the Federal



Communications Commission investigating and prose-

cuting a violation of the Communications Act, or by any

other Federal Agency in a criminal investigation with-

in its jurisdiction; and lastly, that the protections pro-

vided by the Communications Act are not available to

an individual who broadcasts in violation of the pro-

visions of the Act.

ARGUMENT
The defendants by their motion to suppress evidence

(T.R. 10-12) argued that the interception of their radio

broadcasts by the Government constituted an unlawful

search and seizure in violation of the protections of

the Fourth Amendment to the Federal Constitution,

and such interception also constituted a violation of

Section 605 of Title 47 (The Federal Communications

Act of 1934).

The Government believes that it is well established

that the interception of conversations whether by wire

or air is not a violation of the Fourth Amendment. This

Court in the famous case of Olmstead vs. U. S., 19 F.

2d.843; affirmed 277 U.S. 438, held that the tapping of

defendant's telephone wires was not a violation of his

constitutional rights. The Supreme Court in affirming

this Court in the Olmstead case held that the tapping

of telephone wires was not a search nor seizure, but a

mere use of the sense of hearing.

In Goldman vs. U. S., 316 U. S. 129, the Supreme
Court reaffirmed and adheared to the principles stated

in the Olmstead case concerning the Fourth Amend-
ment.

It is therefore the contention of the Government in

this case that no constitutional protecion of the defend-

ants was invaded. What was done in this case cannot be

distinguished from what was done in the Olmstead case

or the Goldman case. Here there is no showing of an
invasion of the defendants' dwelling or office, nor is



there any seizure by the Government of the defendants'
property. There was merely a listening or overhearing
of the defendants' voices, as they were projected
through the air which, as the cited cases hold, is neither

a search nor a seizure.

The Government believes, however, that the main
contention of the defendants is that they are entitled

to the protection of Section 605 of Title 47, and that

Federal agents violated Section 605 by monitoring the

radio broadcasts of the defendants ; hence, all evidence

and information so gained must be suppressed, and the

Government forbidden to make use of such information

in a criminal trial against the defendants.

Section 605 states in part

:

" .... and no person not being authorized by the

sender shall intercept any communication and
divulge or publish the existence, contents, sub-

stance, purport, effect or meaning of such inter-

cepted communication to any person; . . .
."

In support of their contention that Section 605 for-

bids the use of monitored radio information the de-

fendants cited to the learned Trial Judge the follow-

ing Supreme Court cases

:

Nardone vs. United States, 302 U. S. 379

Weiss vs. United States, 308 U. S. 321

Nardone vs. United States, 308 U. S. 338

Goldstein vs. United States, 316 U. S. 114

All of the above cited cases dealt with the problem of

tapping telephone wires by Federal Agents to gain

evidence for a criminal case. The first Nardone case

held that Section 605 forbade wire tapping by all per-

sons including Federal Agents and that evidence ob-

tained by Federal Agents by tapping telephone wires

was not admissible in Federal Court. The Weiss case
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and the second Nardone case reaffirmed the position of

the court that wire tapped evidence was not admissible

in a Federal Court against the sender, and the Supreme

Court further held that the Government could not make
use of such information gained by wire tapping in order

to establish a case against the sender. The last impor-

tant case on the subject, Goldstein vs. United States,

supra, held that the use of wire tapped information

to induce a party to testify in a criminal case would

not render such testimony so procured inadmissible

against a defendant not a party to the message.

In the case at issue the defendants argued before

the trial court that their situation is directly in point

with the wire tapping cases cited above due to the fact

that Section 605 applied to both radio and telephone.

The evidence offered by defendants shows that their

radio conversations were listened to and that use

of such conversations was made in questioning wit-

nesses, presenting the case to the Grand Jury, and pre-

paring for trial.

Notwithstanding the seeming similarity in facts

between the wire tapping cases and the case at issue,

the Government contends that there are certain dis-

tinguishing features in this case which were not pres-

ent in the cited cases. First, the medium used by the

defendants is different than that used in the cited

cases, for in the present case the defendants made use

of radio broadcasting which is a strictly regulated

medium requiring licensing and specific fields of use

;

whereas the medium of telephonic communication in

the cited cases is public in character with little or no
regulation on the sender. Second, the Federal Agents
who made the interceptions of radio messages in this

case are agents of the Federal Communications Com-
mission, an agency of the United States, which the

Government contends has authority to intercept radio
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messages and make use of information gained there-

from. Lastly, the defendants in their operations were
violating the provisions of the Communications Act,

the very Act under which they seek protection.

In order to properly decide the issues in this case

certain sections of the Communications Act must be

called to the Court's attention. While the defendants

may claim the protection of Section 605, it must be

remembered that that section is but a part of the entire

Act, and for a proper construction of the part, the

whole must be considered.

United States vs. Alpers, 338 U. S. 680, 684

Adler vs. Northern Hotel C, 175 F 2d 619, 621

Elizabeth Arden Sales Corp. vs. Gus Blass Co. 150
P. 2d. 988, 993

Marshal vs. Andrew F. Mahoney Co., CCA. 9,

1932 56 F. 2d. 74, 78

The Communications Act of 1934 is a hybrid. By
that Act Congress established a compherensive system

for the regulation of communication by wire and

radio, and in the new Act Congress created the Federal

Communications Commission to which it entrusted

authority previously exercised by several other

agencies. Scripps-Howard Radio, Inc. vs. Federal Com-
munications Commission, 316 IT. S. 4. It is noteworthy

that among the articles of equipment which Congress

directed to be turned over to the new agency, the Fed-

eral Communications Commission, was all equipment

including monitoring radio stations of the Federal

Radio Commission. 48 Stat. 1102, 47 U.S.C 603(b) (1).

This section standing alone would have little force, but

Congress also gave the Federal Communications Com-
mission the power to make such expenditures from ap-

propriations for obtaining land, for constructing, and

for maintaining such radio monitoring stations, as may
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be necessary for the execution of the functions vested

in the Commission. 47 U.S.C. 154(g).

It is the contention of the Government that these

cited sections of the statute would be sufficient to

establish the authority of the Federal Communications

Commission to monitor radio broadcasts of private

individuals and to make use of the information gained

from such monitoring.

The Supreme Court gives support to the view that the

Federal Communications Commission must be able to

listen to radio broadcasts and make use of the informa-

tion it gains therefrom when the Court in National

Broadcasting Co. vs. United States, 319 U. S. 190 at 215,

stated

:

"The Act itself establishes that the Commission's
powers are not limited to the engineering and tech-

nical aspects of regulation of radio communication.
Yet we are asked to regard the Commission as a

kind of traffic officer, policing the wave lengths

to prevent stations from interfering with each
other. But the Act does not restrict the Commission
merely to supervision of the traffic. It puts upon
the Commission the burden of determining the

composition of that traffic. The facilities of radio

are not large enough to accommodate all who wish
to use them. Methods must be devised for choosing
from among the many who apply. And since

Congress itself could not do this, it committed
the task to the Commission. '

'

Section 303 of Title 47 setting forth the powers and
duties of the Commission adds further weight to the

position that Congress intended that the Commission
should monitor radio broadcasting and make use of

such information. Of particular importance is subsec-

tion (n) of Section 303 in which it is stated that the

Commission shall:
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"Have authority to inspect all radio installations
associated with stations required to be licensed by
any Act or which are subject to the provisions of
any Act, treaty, or convention binding on the
United States, to ascertain whether in construc-
tion, installation, and operation they conform to
the requirements of the rules and regulations of the
Commission, the provisions of any Act, the terms
of any treaty or convention binding on the United
States, and the conditions of the license or other
instrument of authorization under which they are
constructed, installed, or operated/'

But, as the defendants argued in the District Court,

conceding that the Commission may monitor radio

broadcasts, the sole use which may be made of such

information is in matters directly within the juris-

diction of the Commission; the Commission may not

turn over such information as it gained by monitoring

to any other Federal Agency for use by that agency.

The defendants argued that the protection of Section

605 would be destroyed if the Commission can lend its

information to other agencies. Before answering the

contentions of the defendants, the Government believes

that it is well to point out the extremes which may occur

under the defendants' position. If the argument of

defendants is followed we may have this situation : A
foreign agent residing within the United States makes

use of a short wave radio to send secret defense infor-

mation of the United States to his foreign government

;

the Federal Communications Commission discovers this

plot by listening to the broadcasts. According to defend-

ants such an individual could be prosecuted for broad-

casting without a license or some other related violation

of the Communications Act, but the information gained

by the Federal Communications Commission could not

be used by the Justice Department in a prosecution for

espionage. The Government believes that Congress in-
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tended no such result when it enacted the Communica-
tions Act.

It is true that Section 605 sets up a broad protection

for those who make use of wire and radio communica-
tion, but the purpose of that section is to protect the

means of communication and not the secrecy of the

conversation. Goldman vs. United States, supra, at

page 133.

To promote the purposes of the Communications Act
Congress created the Federal Communications Com-
mission. To that body Congress gave broad powers
which included not only powers exercised by previous

agencies but also additional power over wire and radio

sommunications. 47 TJ.S.C. 151. In Section 303 (n) of

the Act Congress gave the Commission the authority to

inspect radio installations to ascertain whether in con-

struction, installation, and operation they conform not

only to the rules and regulations of the Commission,
out whether they also conform to the provisions of any
Act. It is the position of the Government in this appeal
;hat such a delegation of power to the Commission also

^ives that agency the power by implication to make
ivailable to another Federal Agency information which
;he Commission has secured through an inspection car-

ded on by monitoring the operation of a radio station.

This position is based on the proposition that a statu-

;ory grant of power carries with it, by implication,

iverything necessary to carry out that power and make
t effectual and complete. United States vs. Jones, 204
?. 2d. 745 at 754 CCA. 7 (1953). If the argument offer-

id by the defendants were adopted the Commission
vould be in the absurd position of being able to discover
violations of Acts other than the Communications Act
>ut not being able to divulge the information to the
)roper Federal Agency. Such an absurd position was
lot intended by Congress, nor will this Court place such
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a construction on the Act when a reasonable interpre-

tation will not do violence to the language of the Act
and will effectuate the intent of Congress.

United States vs. Raynor, 302 IT. S. 540, at 547

Haff vs. Yung Poy, CCA. 9, 1933, 68 F. 2d. 203 at

205.

Chester N. Weaver Co. vs. Commissioner of Intern-
al Revenue, CCA. 9, 1938, 97 F. 2d. 31 at 33

The Government contends that the protections set

forth in Section 605 are not destroyed by the construc-

tion which is placed on the sections outlined heretofore.

Section 605 protects an individual in the authorized

use of radio communication, but the Federal Communi-
cations Commission has the duty of protecting the pub-

lic 's interest in radio communication. A harmonious

construction of the entire Act would establish Section

605 as protecting the sender of a radio message from

unauthorized interception and divulgence of the radio

message, but all radio communications would be subject

to the power of the Commission to monitor broadcasts

for the protection of the national defense and welfare,

and the Commission would have the power to make use

of the monitored radio information itself or turn it

over to another Federal Agency for its use. This con-

struction gives full effect and meaning to the whole Act.

There remains one last point to be considered in the

defendants' claim of protection under Section 605.

Does the protection of Section 605 cover the defendants

when they were unlicensed operators and using radio

broadcasting for an illegal purpose % It is the Govern-

ment 's contention that the answer to the question must

be, No.

Section 301 of the Act provides, in part, that no per-

son shall use or operate any apparatus for the tranmis-

sion of signals by radio within any state when the effect
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of such use extends beyond the borders of said state,

except in accordance with the Act and with a license in

that behalf issued under the Act. Section 309(d) of the

Act provides, in part, that a station license shall be
subject to the terms designated in the license and
operated in the manner authorized in the license. By
the provision of Section 318 of the Act, an operator's

license is required for the operation of radio apparatus
licensed under the Act.

The defendants secured a radio station license (Ex.

3) providing for the use of radios on their farm ve-

hicles to assist in their farming operations (TR 67 and
Ex. 3). The station license was issued August 27, 1953
(Ex. 3), but the defendants did not receive their opera-
tors licenses until September 17, 1953 (TR 47, 68, 74,

and Exs. 1 and 2). In the period from August 27 to

September 17 the defendants operated the station even
though they had no license. Of more consequence is the
fact that the station was used for an illegal purpose,
namely, to warn field foreman of the approach of
immigration officers so that illegal immigrants could
be hidden from detection.

The defendants now claim that the Communications
Act, which they flagrantly violated, protects them in
their illegal use of their radio. The Government con-
tends that Congress intended no such illogical position.

Before the defendants can claim the rights given by the
statute, they must perform the duties required by that
statute. This they failed to do.

This Court, in Casey vs. United States, C.C.A.9, 191
F. 2d 1, reversed on other grounds 343 U. S. 808, held
that Section 605 refers to communications over licensed
facilities. In the Casey case, this Court stated at page 4

:

"There is no merit to appellants' contention that
the trial court erred in admitting in evidence the
substance of radio messages between appellants.
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§605 of the Act, 47 U.S.C.A. 605, which prohibits

the interception and divulgence of communications
without the consent or approval of the sender, re-

fers to communications over licensed facilities. The
appellants were unlicensed operators transmitting

voice messages over an unlicensed station, without
call letters, on a portion of the band reserved for

Morse Code operations. The protections of the Act
were never intended for, nor do they cover, such
communications which are themselves illegal."

It is the position of the Government that the reason-

ing of this Court in the Casey case was sound. Good
sense and logic support this position that licensed facili-

ties are the object of the Act's protection. To adopt a

different view would place Congress in the position of

establishing a policy throughout a statute and then in

one section provide for the obstruction of that policy.

No court will approve such a construction when a sens-

ible reading of the entire act shows the true intent of

the lawmakers.

United States v. Raynor, supra.

Haff v. Yung Poy, supra.

Chester N. Weaver Co. v. Commissioner of Intern-

al Rev., supra.

Ford Motor Co. v. Mahone, 205 F 2d 267, 272.

Burcham v. J. P. Stevens n Co., 209 F 2d 35, 40.

Swan Island Club v. Yarbroagh, 209 F 2d 698, 701
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CONCLUSION

The Governmenl respectfully submits that the Dis-

trict Courl erred: (1) in holding thai the evidence

which the Governmenl gained by monitor was illegally

obtained; (2) in ordering the monitored radio informa-

tion suppressed; and (3) in ordering the indictments

auainst defendants dismissed. The judgment and rul-

ing of the District Court should be reversed, with ap-

propriate instructions directing a trial on the merits.

Respectfully submitted,

JACK D. H. HAYS,
United States Attorney.

WILLIAM A. HOLOHAN,
Assistant U. S. Attorney.




